Convention
Arena
Authority
l.
Steven Heacock,
Chairman II
Birgit Klohs
Clit Charles I
Gary Mclnerney '
George Heartwell
Joseph Tomaselli
Lew Chamberlin
IV.
V.
VL
VII.

VAN ANDEL
ARENA
EAND RAPIDS

[3

T

Van Andel Arena®
130 Fulton West
Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2601
616.742.6600

Fax 616.742.6197

GRAND R T COUNTY
e e e S e e 2P

e P P e e R T B it gt
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT. CONVENTION, SHOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

Board of Directors

Wednesday, September 23, 2009
8:00 a.m. — 9:30 a.m.
Kent County Commission Chambers
300 Monroe, NW — Grand Rapids, MI

AGENDA

Call to Order

Approval of August 26, 2009, Minutes

Committee Reports

A. Operations Committee
i. CVB Report

B. Finance Committee

i. SMG August 2009 Financial Statements -
DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®
ii. CAA August 2009 Financial Statements
iii. FY 2010 Budget Amendment
SMG Report and Facilities Calendars
Public Comment

Adjournment

Next Meeting Date: Wednesday, October 28, 2009

Action
Information
Information
Action
Action

Action

Information

DeVos Place®
303 Monroe Ave. NW

Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-

2233
616.742.6500
Fax 616.742.6590




Item II

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, August 26, 2009

L Call to Order
Steven R. Heacock, Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 8:05 a.m. Susan Waddell
recorded the meeting minutes in the absence of Secretary/Treasurer Birgit Klohs. Chair Heacock
added to the agenda approval to submit application to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission
for a Special On-Premise License.
Attendance

Members Present: Steve Heacock, Chairperson

Lew Chamberlin
George Heartwell
Gary McInerney

Members Absent: Birgit Klohs
Joe Tomaselli

Staff/Others: David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Jim Day Kent County
Daryl Delabbio Kent County
George Helmstead CVB
Chris Knape The Grand Rapids Press
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Drew Nikodem IATSE
Doug Small CVB
Greg Sundstrom City of Grand Rapids
Eddie Tadlock SMG
Susan Waddell CAA
Richard Wendt Dickinson Wright
Robert White Kent County

IL Minutes of Prior Meeting

Motion: Mr. Heartwell, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the Minutes of the June 24,
2009, meeting of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority. The motion carried
unanimously.

II1. Committee Reports

a. Operations Committee

Mr. Chamberlin reported that Jim Watt presented a capital projects update to the Operations Committee.
The telephone upgrades, wireless network upgrades, and snowmelt installation projects have been
completed. Four variable frequency drives were installed at the Arena and qualify for a 50% federal tax



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
August 26, 2009 -2

credit. Parking lot automation has been installed at both the Area 2 and DeVos Place® parking ramps.
Mr. Watt provided an update on the concourse expansion project and there was considerable discussion
about the congestion mitigation study prepared by Rosetti & Associates, the original architects of the
building. SMG engaged Rosetti to conduct an independent study to relieve congestion in the northwest
corridor by the skywalk entrance. The area is too small and would have to be expanded or eliminate three
food and beverage and merchandise stands, which account for 20% of revenue on event days. Rosetti
proposed three options: (i) concourse expansion to the window wall; (ii) expanding through the glass
curtain wall with a curvature-shaped addition; and (iii) expanding through the glass curtain wall with a
rectangular-shaped addition. Expanding the concourse would add 1,940 square feet and cost $425,000.
The other two options would add 3,100 square feel and create room for a food court with 60 seats. These
options would cost $875,000. SMG will offer a formal recommendation to the Committee in September.
Mr. MacKeigan stated that there is $1.2 million in the budget for an LED ribbon Board. He is working on
a plan to install a smaller LED board and complete construction of an addition for the same amount of
money. Rich has approached DP Fox executives about combining the two projects and they are
comfortable with the idea. Mr. Chamberlin stated that the approach of combining the two projects would
give SMG an opportunity to see how well a smaller LED board works and a clearer idea of ROL
Customer service issues are involved, as this is a huge bottleneck area and patrons need access to the
venue. Mr. Heacock suggested that the Operations Committee make a recommendation in September for
final resolution at the Board level and the CAA cannot lose sight of the problem it is trying to solve.

Mr. Chamberlin stated that 29 artists have registered to display their works at DeVos Place®. SMG
engaged the services of Sarah Garrett to review and curate possible artists. Due to the resignation of Clif
Charles, the Diversity Committee is suspending activity for a couple of months. Chair Heacock
volunteered to replace Clif so that the initiative does not lose momentum. A new ticketing procedure to
limit scalpers for the first 30% of the house was used for the AC/DC concert and worked fairly well.

Mr. Small stated that the CVB’s executive committee is discussing candidates to replace Clif Charles.
Mr. Small presented a room night revenue update. Mr. Helmstead provided a brief overview of recent
sales activities, marketing efforts, and major bid presentations. There were no bookings in July; however,
the CVB hosted five site inspections. .The CVB sales staff is working on 56 leads from the RCMA
conference.

b. Finance Committee.
i. SMG June 2009 Financial Statements for DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®
Motion: Mr. Mclnerney, supported by Mr. Heartwell, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements

Jor DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena® for the period ended June 30, 2009. After review and
discussion, the motion carried unanimously.

ii. SMG July 2009 Financial Statements for DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®
Motion: Myr. Chamberlin, supported by Mr. McInerney, moved to approve the SMG Financial

Statements for DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena® for the period ended July 31, 2009. After
review and discussion, the motion carried unanimously.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
August 26, 2009 - 3

iii. CAA Financial Statements
Motion: Mr. Heartwell, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the CAA Financial Statements
Jor the periods ended June 30, 2009m and July 31, 2009. After review and discussion, the motion
carried unanimously.

iv. Annual Insurance Renewal
The CAA’s insurance renewal quote from IBEX Insurance Agency is $22,853 as compared to $20,623
last year. The coverages include general liability, public officials’ liability, crime/faithful performance,

auto liability, property insurance, and limited terrorism liability.

Motion: Mr. Heartwell, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the renewal insurance
proposal as presented. The motion carried unanimously.

Chair Heacock suggested that the Board may want to consider the necessity of the insurance coverage.
v. Audit Planning Communication

BDO Seidman presented its FY 2009 audit plan in conformance with auditing standards. BDO is

required to communicate its responsibilities, an overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit,

and significant findings from the audit.

Iv. Michigan Liquor Control Commission Special On-Premise License

Mr. MacKeigan presented an update on planning for the 2009 International Wine & Food Festival.
Similar to last year, the CAA will need to approve a resolution to submit an application to the Michigan
Liquor Control Commission for a special liquor license. The special license allows nonprofit
organizations to obtain a one-day license to sell alcoholic beverages to the public. The license fee is $25
for each separate, consecutive day of the event and an additional $3.75 for Sunday sales.

Motion: Mr. Mclnerney, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved for approval to submit an application to
the Michigan Liquor Control Commission for a special liquor license. The motion carried unanimously.

V. SMG Report and Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan presented a summary of the upcoming events that will be held at DeVos Place® and the
Van Andel Arena®.

VI.  Public Comment

Chair Heacock noted that
o He recently attended a recent tradeshow for arena and convention center managers. Sessions
included information on “green” buildings, challenges to small market buildings, diversity efforts
and legal issues faced by buildings. He noted that the tradeshow and interaction with other
building operators and promoters was most valuable. He also noted that it was obvious that Mr.
MacKeigan is well connected and respected within the industry and that his stature is of great
value to the CAA.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
August 26, 2009 - 4

VIL

In working through the issues related to the resignation of Mr. Charles from the board, he was
again struck by the value of each and every board member to the CAA. He thanked the board
members for their service and devotion to the CAA.

Discussions toward the settlement of the Delta Plex litigation continue. Mr. Heacock noted that
he initially not only accepted but repeated counsel’s statement that the lawsuit was frivolous and
would be resolved quickly. He is sorry that he made the statement. Since the litigation continues,
it is obvious that it is hardly frivolous and is very important to the principals involved. While the
CAA is only tangentially involved in the litigation, Mr. Heacock has been told that the settlement
negotiations are going well.

Ambassador Secchia is leading an effort to bring first round NCAA men’s basketball
championship games to the Van Andel Arena. It is a difficult task but with Peter’s leadership it
appears that Grand Rapids may have a chance at being designated a tournament site.

Next Meeting Date

The date for next CAA Board meeting is Wednesday, August 26, 2009, in the Kent County Commission
Chambers, Kent County Administration Building, 300 Monroe Avenue, NW. The July meeting is
cancelled.

IX.

Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 8:45 a.m.

Susan M. Waddell, Recording Secretary



Item III.B.i.

DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED AUGUST 31, 2009

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facility



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2010

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS
EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE

SALES

OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

INCENTIVE FEE

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER

OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
68 496 564 564 .
43,878 509,422 553,300 553,300 -
313,680 1,949,320 2,263,000 2,263,000 -
210,810 2,066,445 2,271,255 2,277,255 -
524,490 4,015,765 4,540,255 4,540,255 2
12,176 160,324 172,500 172,500 -
536,666 4,176,089 4,712,755 4,712,755 -
20,126 153,178 173,304 173,304 -
35,509 188,787 224,296 224,296 -
7,039 100,687 107,726 107,726 .
177,796 1,351,454 1,529,250 1,529,250 -
122,850 766,297 889,147 889,147 -
12,016 60,554 72,570 72,570 -
56,197 290,423 346,620 346,620 -
264,998 1,944,434 2,209,432 2,209,432 -
696,530 4,855,814 5,552,345 5,552,345 -
(159,864) (679,725) (839,590) (839,590) -
- 0 -
(159,864) (679,725) (839,590) (839,590) -

DeVos Place is ahead of budget overall through the first two months
of the fiscal year. Event load is consistent with expectations, however,
overall event income is slightly behind expectations but ahead of same
point last fiscal year. August marked the start of the Arts Group season
as Broadway presented High School Musical at the end of the month.




DE YOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending August 31, 2009
and the YTD ending June 30, 2009, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH

Number of Events
Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary Income
Other Income
Indirect Expenses
Net Income

YTD

Number of Events
Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary Income
Other Income
Indirect Expenses
Net Income

EVENT INCOME

August August August
Actual Budget FY 2009
35 35 49
15,595 23,500 27,733
$123,070 $122,852 $150,233
108,992 142,677 110,541
8,666 14,833 10,925
(330,069) (462,698) (327,356)
($89,341) ($182,336) ($55,657)
YTD 2010 YTD 2010 YTD 2009
Actual Budget Prior Year
65 68 75
43,878 47,992 37,358
$313,680 $266,959 $188,103
210,810 283,930 143,856
12,176 25,166 23,847
(696,530) (925,397) (732,845)
($159,864) ($349,342) ($377,039)

Event income was consistent with budget overall.

ANCILLARY INCOME

~ Ancillary income fell below expectations for the month, however, ahead of last fiscal
year which is a positive sign.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in ahead of budget. Most of the savings attributed to a credit

received in Steam as it was discovered that we had a faulty meter.




DeVos Place
Income Statement

For the Two Months Ending August 31, 2009

Current Month  Current Month CurrentMonth  Yearto Date  Year to Date Year to Date
Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year
Event Income
Direct Event income
Rental Income $112,993 $134,444 ($21,451) $154,667 $306,053 $305,357 $696 $205,224
Service Revenue 152,269 136,918 15,351 145,568 248,199 262,112 (13,913) 175,329
Service Expenses (142,192) (148,510) 6,318 (150,002) (240,572) (300,510) 59,938 (192,450)
Total Direct Event Income 123,070 122,852 218 150,233 313,680 266,959 46,721 188,103
Ancillary Income
F&B Concession 2,424 5,328 (2,904) 3,230 10,622 16,472 (4,850) 7,227
F&B Catering 33,498 51,422 (17,924) 53,342 68,756 100,035 (31,279) 70,073
Novelty Sales 3,648 1,706 1,942 1,914 3,648 2,550 1,098 1,914
Booth Cleaning 6,028 13,852 (7,824) 2,675 11,577 21,454 (9.877) 5,675
Telephone/Long Distance 0 0 0 0 563 2,472 (1,909) 0
Electrical Services 9,513 34,177 (24,664) 6,977 26,160 59,177 (33,017) 13,185
Audio Visual 45,049 25,996 19,053 36,383 61,002 63,905 7,097 39,086
Internet Services 17 1,516 (1,499) 730 11,417 10,666 751 (3,759)
Equipment Rental 8,815 8,680 135 5,290 17,065 18,199 (1,134) 10,455
Total Anciifary iIncome 108,992 142,677 (33,685) 110,541 210,810 283,930 (73,120) 143,856
Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event) 6,614 10,000 (3,386) 8,209 7,994 16,000 (8,006) 18,094
Total Other Event Income 6,614 10,000 (3,386) 8,209 7,994 16,000 (8,006) 18,094
Total Event Income 238,676 275,529 (36,853) 268,983 532,484 566,889 (34,405) 350,053
Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements 1,733 2,000 (267) 2,600 3,467 4,000 (533) 5,200
Other Income 319 2,833 (2,514) 116 715 5,166 (4,451) 553
Total Other Operating Income 2,052 4,833 (2,781) 2,716 4,182 9,166 (4,984) 5,753
Adjusted Gross Income 240,728 280,362 (39,634) 271,699 536,666 576,055 (39,389) 355,806
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages 209,167 223,027 (13,860) 215,099 396,045 446,055 (50,010) 367,897
Payroll Taxes and Benefits 53,888 61,340 (7,452) 65,036 94,985 122,680 (27,695) 101,112
Labor Allocations to Events (127,086) (119,103) (7,983) (122,981) (216,664) (238,206) 21,542 (163,760)
Net Salaries and Benefits 135,969 165,264 (29,295) 157,154 274,366 330,529 (56,163) 305,249
Contracted Services 25,514 21,200 4,314 29,835 46,159 42,400 3,759 61,237
General and Administrative 20,668 28,768 (8,100) 32,623 38,256 57,536 (19,280) 52,235
Operations 6,250 11,823 (5,573) 1,238 7,999 23,646 (15,647) 4,684
Repair and Maintenance 25,935 41,941 (16,006) 30,007 62,014 83,882 (21,868) 73,555
Operational Supplies 26,584 21,500 5,084 (24,054) 27,781 43,000 (15,219) 25,600
Insurance 12,185 17,463 (5,278) 14,324 26,642 34,926 (8,284) 25,516
Utilities 63,741 141,516 (77,775) 73,006 186,868 283,032 (96,164) 158,324
SMG Management Fees 13,223 13,223 0 13,223 26,445 26,446 (¢)] 26,445
Total Operating Expenses 330,069 462,698 (132,629) 327,356 696,530 925,397 (228,867) 732,845
Net Income(Loss) From Operations (89,341) (182,336) 92,995 (55,657) (159,864) (349,342) 189,478 (377,039)
Other Non-Operating Expenses
Adjusted Net Income(Loss) (89,341) (182,336) 92,995 (55,657) (159,864) (349,342) 189,478 (377,039)

3



SMG DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Year to Date Event Summary Report
For Month Ended August 31, 2009

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income

Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Convention/Trade Shows 28 34 27,330 24,992 341,343 388,742
Consumer/Gated Shows - - - - - -
Devos Performance Hall 20 13 9,361 15,500 100,341 107,072
Banquets 2 2 800 1,500 9,402 14,722
Meetings 14 18 6,187 4,500 81,088 50,106
Other 1 1 200 1,000 307 6,247
GRAND TOTALS 65 68 43,878 47,492 532,481 566,889
As Percentage of Overall

Convention/Trade Shows 43.08% 50.00% 62.29% 52.62% 64.10% 68.57%
Consumer/Gated Shows 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Devos Performance Hall 30.77% 19.12% 21.33% 32.64% 18.84% 18.89%
Ballroom Exclusive 3.08% 2.94% 1.82% 3.16% 1.77% 2.60%
Meetings 21.54% 26.47% 14.10% 9.48% 15.23% 8.84%

Other 1.54% 1.47% 0.46% 2.11% 0.06% 1.10%



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities
Other Liabilities

Equity

CY Funds Remitted to SEA
CY Exp. Paid Directly by City
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

DeVos Place
Balance Sheet

For the Two Months Ending August 31, 2009

ASSETS

667,481
435,290
73,433

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

82,392
89,665
55,966
366,806

(150,000)
173,944
717,297

(159,867)

$1,176,204

$1,176,204

$594,829

$581,375

$1,176,204




SMG - DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
For Month Ended August 31, 2009

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Merchandise
Decorating
Audio/Visual
Van Andel Arena
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days
Donnell Productions
Paragon Leather
Saigon Entertainment
Grinder Promotions

Total Accounts Receivable

36,045
3,724
1,311
6,028

40,210

11,298

209,706

78,874

32,960

5,736
2,110
5,002
2,286

435,290



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2010

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2009
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,162,673 (839,590) 323,083 835,421
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 1,162,673 (839,590) (376,917) 135,421

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

Base Fee 158,672 158,671 317,343 317,343
Incentive Fee

Revenue 5,004,712 4,712,755 9,717,467 9,591,113

Benchmark Revenue 4,750,000 4,150,000 8,900,000 8,800,000

Revenue Excess 254,712 562,755 817,467 791,113

Incentive Fee ** - - - 212,334
Total SMG Management Fee 158,672 158,671 317,343 529,677

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED AUGUST 31, 2009

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item IILB.i



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2010

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE
NO. EVENTS 4 101 105 105 -
ATTENDANCE 27,436 532,214 559,650 559,650 -
DIRECT EVENT INCOME 105,377 1,318,368 1,423,745 1,423,745 -
ANCILLARY INCOME 89,957 1,023,620 1,113,577 1,113,577 -
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 195,334 2,341,988 2,537,322 2,537,322 -
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 383,090 2,084,300 2,467,390 2,467,390 -
TOTAL INCOME 578,424 4,426,288 5,004,712 5,004,712 -
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 33,970 153,104 187,074 187,074 -
FINANCE 27,383 206,542 233,925 233,925 -
MARKETING 36,467 238,813 275,280 275,280 -
OPERATIONS 185,406 1,459,438 1,644,844 1,644,844 -
BOX OFFICE 13,123 131,015 144,138 144,138 -
LUXURY SEATING 12,566 74,185 86,751 86,751 -
SKYWALK ADMIN 4,695 19,261 23,956 23,956 -
OVERHEAD 190,772 1,055,299 1,246,071 1,246,071 -
TOTAL INDIRECT EXP. 504,382 3,337,657 3,842,039 3,842,039 -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES 74,042 1,088,631 1,162,673 1,162,673 -
LESS INCENTIVE FEE 0 - -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER INCENTIVE 74,042 1,088,631 1,162,673 1,162,673 -
Comments:

The Arena hosted two very successful concerts during the month

with AC/DC and Journey/Heart that starts the fiscal year off on a
strong note.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED AUGUST 31, 2009

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending August 31, 2009
and the YTD ending June 30, 2009 compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH August August August

Actual Budget FY 2009
Number of Events 3 4 3
Attendance 19,043 21,150 17,611
Direct Event Income $88,827 $107,342 80,133
Ancillary Income 77,779 56,651 53,233
Other Income 238,806 211,765 228,786
Indirect Expenses (277,036) (320,171) (307,954)
Net Income $128,376 $55,687 $54,198
YTD YTD 2010 YTD 2010 YTD 2009

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 4 5 4
Attendance 27,436 19,650 24,565
Direct Event Income $105,377 $162,673 79,403
Ancillary Income 89,957 83,071 77,911
Other Income 383,090 366,245 402,626
Indirect Expenses (504,382) (640,342) (593,710)
Net Income $74,042 ($28,353) ($33,770)

EVENT INCOME

Event income fell a little behind budget as 3 concerts were budgeted compared to the two hosted,

however, both concerts performed well above the budgeted average to help offset that show. Walk up
sales were very strong as over 1,000 tickets were sold day of for the two concerts when 150-200 per

day is a strong walk up show.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income performed well ahead of budget as concessions and novelty per caps for both shows

were very strong.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenes came in under budget for the month.




Event Income

Direct Event Income
Rental Income
Service Revenue
Service Expenses

Total Direct Event Income

Ancillary Income
F&B Concession
F&B Catering
Novelty Sales

Total Ancillary Income

Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event)

Total Other Event Income

Total Event Income

Other Operating iIncome
Luxury Box Agreements
Club Seat Agreements
Advertising
Other Income

Total Other Operating Income

Adjusted Gross Income

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Payroll Taxes and Benefits
Labor Allocations to Events

Net Salaries and Benefits

Contracted Services
General and Administrative
Operations

Repair and Maintenance
Operational Supplies
Insurance

Utilities

SMG Management Fees

Total Operating Expenses

Net Income(Loss) From Operations

Other Non-Operating Expenses

Adjusted Net Income(Loss)

Current Month Current Month

Van Andel Arena

Income Statement

For the Two Months Ending August 31,2009

Current Month Yearto Date  Year to Date

Year to Date

Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year
$70,565 $99,156 (28,591) $64,161 $89,565 $149,400 (59,844) $56,574
115,085 140,428 (25,343) 130,786 119,014 200,854 (81,840) 180,924
(96,823) (132,242) 35,419 (114,814) (103,202) (187,590) 84,388 (158,095)

88,827 107,342 (18,515) 80,133 105,377 162,673 (57,296) 79,403
62,410 41,013 21,397 40,230 74,088 58,868 15,220 59,836
8,141 6,141 2,000 4,425 8,141 9,039 (898) 6,062
7,228 9,497 (2,269) 8,578 7,728 15,164 (7.436) 12,013
77,779 56,651 21,128 53,233 89,957 83,071 6,886 77,911
31,434 31,155 279 23,653 31,434 31,155 279 35,435
31,434 31,155 279 23,653 31,434 31,155 279 35,435
198,040 195,148 2,892 157,019 226,768 276,899 (50,131) 192,749
140,414 93,026 47,388 142,709 234,424 159,922 74,502 245,246
0 26,500 (26,500) 0 0 53,000 (53,000) 0
61,017 54,167 6,850 54,813 107,517 108,334 (817) 107,313
5,941 6,917 (976) 7,611 9,715 13,834 (4,119) 14,632
207,372 180,610 26,762 205,133 351,656 335,090 16,566 367,191
405,412 375,758 29,654 362,152 578,424 611,989 (33,565) 559,940
133,297 158,969 (25,672) 186,034 238,628 317,938 (79,310) 303,463
31,936 46,429 (14,493) 46,689 59,717 92,858 (33,141) 72,707
(59,330) (71,669) 12,339 (65,031) (80,423) (143,338) 62,915 (97,969)
105,903 133,729 (27,826) 167,692 217,922 267,458 (49,536) 278,201
17,867 21,300 (3,433) 19,527 36,235 42,600 (6,365) 55,361
25,790 27,965 (2,175) 23,482 39,823 55,930 (16,107) 43,681
2,099 5,183 (3,084) 393 2,859 10,366 (7,507) 5,917
6,485 18,662 (12,177) 12,608 18,198 37,324 (19,126) 29,186
11,786 18,342 (6,556) 5,347 12,583 36,684 (24,101) 27,704
6,173 2,667 3,506 5,715 10,396 5,334 5,062 9,569
87,710 79,100 8,610 59,967 139,921 158,200 (18,279) 117,646
13,223 13,223 0 13,223 26,445 26,446 1) 26,445
277,036 320,171 (43,135) 307,954 504,382 640,342 (135,960) 593,710
128,376 55,587 72,789 54,198 74,042 (28,353) 102,395 (33,770)
128,376 55,587 72,789 54,198 74,042 (28,353) 102,395 (33,770)




SMG - Van Andel Arena

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Event Summary

Month Ending August 31, 2009

Event Type

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games
Other

GRAND TOTALS

As Percentage of Overall

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games

Other

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
1 1 8,393 1,500 28,877 11,625
2 3 18,768 21,000 239,453 218,303
1 1 275 150 2,636 2,975
4 5 27,436 22,650 270,966 232,903
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
25.00% 20.00% 30.59% 6.62% 10.66% 4.99%
50.00% 60.00% 68.41% 92.72% 88.37% 93.73%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
25.00% 20.00% 1.00% 0.66% 0.97% 1.28%



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Equity

CY Funds Remitted to SEA
CY Exp. Paid Directly by City
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

Yan Andel Arena
Balance Sheet

For the Two Months Ending August 31, 2009

ASSETS
5,633,784
877,665
160,581
$6,572,030
$6,572,030
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
1,470,572
868,603
1,333,833
2,232,636
$5,905,644
0
129,854
462,489
74,043
$666,386
$6,572,030




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending August 31, 2009

Current - Under 30 Days

Food & Beverage 121,546

Ticketing 195,171

Merchandise 11,205

Permanent Advertising -

DeVos Place (11,298)

Operating 414,300
Over 30 Days 78,241
Over 60 Days 68,500
Over 90 Days

Total Accounts Receivable 877,665



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2010

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2009
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,162,673 (839,590) 323,083 835,421
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 1,162,673 (839,590) (376,917) 135,421

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

Base Fee 158,672 158,671 317,343 317,343
Incentive Fee

Revenue 5,004,712 4,712,755 9,717,467 9,591,113

Benchmark Revenue 4,750,000 4,150,000 8,900,000 8,800,000

Revenue Excess 254,712 562,755 817,467 791,113

Incentive Fee ** - - - 212,334
Total SMG Management Fee 158,672 158,671 317,343 529,677

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



Convention
Arena

Authority

Steven Heacock,
Chairman

Birgit Klohs

Clif Charles

Gary Mclnerney

George Heartwell

Joseph Tomaselli

Lew Chamberlin

VAN ANDEL

ARENA

Van Andel Arenae®

130 Fulton West

Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2601
616.742.6600

Fax 616.742.6197

Item II1.B.ii.

GRAND RMT COUNTY
s e e e 1 e

i il
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT. CONVENTION, SHOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

Memorandum
To: CAA Board Members
From: Susan Waddell, Administrative Manager
Date: September 18, 2009
Re: CAA Financial Statements

The following is a summary of financial activity in the two operating accounts as of
August 31, 2009:

1050: Operations 1070: Kent County Operating
Beginning Balance $ 115,775.02 $22,810,379.17
Cleared Transactions - 300,613.55 42.242.32
Cleared Balance 416,388.57 22,852,621.49
Uncleared Transactions -39.634.35 -740,000.00
Register Balance $ 376,754.22 $22,112,621.49

1. The August interest statement has not been received yet.
2. Land lease, parking revenues, parking management, and pedestrian safety are
behind budget due to timing issues.

If you have any questions or would like additional information, please contact me at
742-6594 or swaddell r.com. Thank you.

DeVos Pla
303 Monroe Ave. NW

Grand Rapids, M| 49503-2233
616.742.6500
Fax 616.742.6590




11:37 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

09/14/08 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of August 31, 2009
Aug 31, 08
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1040 - Cash - Operations - SMG 4,319,835.10
1050 - Operations - Cash 376,754.22
Total Checking/Savings 4,696,589.32

Other Current Assets
1070 - Kent County - Operating

22,112,621.49

1200 - Accounts Receivable 1,227,456.17
1300 - Prepaid Expenses 189,100.35
1600 - Advances/Deposits Receivable -2,400,000.07
Total Other Current Assets 21,129,177.94
Total Current Assets 25,825,767.26
Fixed Assets
Buildings & Structures
Depreciation -83,557.38
Original Cost 322,431.00
Total Buildings & Structures 238,873.62
Equip
Depreciation -682,930.97
Original Cost 1,063,917.04
Total Equip 380,986.07
Vehicles 43,914.30
Total Fixed Assets 663,773.99
TOTAL ASSETS 26,489,541.25
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 - Accounts Payable 147,633.09
2005 - Accounts payable - SMG 665,803.17
Total Accounts Payable 813,436.26
Other Current Liabilities
2200 - Accrued Expenses 1,097,477.61
2210 - Advance Ticket Sales 1,882,333.73
2220 - Advance deposits 291,472.00
2500 - Deferred facility income 1,077,282.74
Total Other Current Liabilities 4,348,566.08
Total Current Liabilities 5,162,002.34
Total Liabilities 5,162,002.34
Equity
3000 - Opening Bal Equity 37,035,584.45
3900 - Retained Earnings -15,077,006.91
Net Income -631,038.63
Total Equity 21,327,538.91
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 26,489,541.25




11:38 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

09/14/09
Accrual Basis

Income
4500 - Interest on Investments
4540 - Land Lease
4545 - Parking Revenues
4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Income

Expense
6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services
6040 - Legal Services

Total 6000 - Professional Services

6060 - Other Contractual Services
60865 - Pedestrian Safety
6068 - Parking Management
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees
6020 - Computer Services
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability
6101 - Advertising/Promo/Publicity
6110 - Meeting Expense
6120 - Supplies

Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses

6160 - Facility Repair and Maintenance
6200 - Capital Replacement Projects
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance
6300 - Utilities Expense

6301 - Electricity

6310 - Natural Gas

6320 - Steam

6340 - Water & Sewer

Total 6300 - Utilities Expense

8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages
8030 - Employee Benefits

Total 8000 - Personal Services
Total Expense

Net Income

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

July through August 2009
Jul - Aug 09 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
0.00 112,500.00 -112,500.00 0.0%
0.00 22,458.50 -22,458.50 0.0%
35,165.00 142,935.50 -107,770.50 24.6%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
35,165.00 277,894.00 -242,729.00 12.7%
2,061.70 6,333.40 -4,271.70 32.6%
15,486.70 5,833.40 9,653.30 265.5%
17,548.40 12,166.80 5,381.60 144.2%
29,541.66 61,500.00 -31,958.34 48.0%
5,471.31 16,000.00 -10,528.69 34.2%
17,539.00 44,775.20 -27,236.20 39.2%

124.69 0.00 124,69 100.0%

279.99 0.00 279.99 100.0%
22,853.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
7,993.61 1,666.70 6,326.91 479.6%
0.00 833.40 -833.40 0.0%
31,251.29 2,500.10 28,751.19 1,250.0%
0.00 1,666.70 -1,666.70 0.0%
222,196.62 324,200.00 -102,003.38 68.5%
0.00 3,333.40 -3,333.40 0.0%
235,256.56 205,333.40 29,923.16 114.6%

344.86 3,000.00 -2,665.14 11.5%
70,151.21 188,150.00 -117,998.79 37.3%
14,749.73 18,750.00 -4,000.27 78.7%

320,502.36 415,233.40 -94,731.04 77.2%
17,240.52 10,970.90 6,269.62 157.1%
491247 3,636.20 1,376.27 138.9%
22,152.99 14,507.10 7,645.89 152.7%
666,203.63 895,882.70 -229,679.07 74.4%
-631,038.63 617,988.70 -13,049.93 102.1%




11:39 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

09/14/09
Accrual Basis

Income
4500 - Interest on Investments
4540 - Land Lease
4545 - Parking Revenues
4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Income

Expense
6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services
6040 - Legal Services

Total 6000 - Professional Services

6060 - Other Contractual Services
6065 - Pedestrian Safety
6068 - Parking Management
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees
6020 - Computer Services
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability
6110 - Meeting Expense

Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses

6200 - Capital Replacement Projects
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance
6300 - Utilities Expense

6301 - Electricity

6310 - Natural Gas

6320 - Steam

6340 - Water & Sewer

Total 6300 - Utilities Expense

8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages
8030 - Employee Benofits

Total 8000 - Personal Services
Total Expense

Net Income

Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison

July through August 2009
Jul - Aug 09 Jul - Aug 08 $ Change % Change

0.00 68,228.80 -68,228.80 -100.0%

0.00 46,056.35 -46,056.35 -100.0%

35,165.00 53,463.25 -18,298.26 -34.2%

0.00 99,920.00 -99,920.00 -100.0%

35,165.00 267,668.40 -232,503.40 -86.9%
2,061.70 1,110.56 951.14 85.7%
15,486.70 0.00 15,486.70 100.0%

17,548.40 1,110.56 16,437.84 1,480.1%

29,541.66 25,000.00 4,541.66 18.2%

5,471.31 -3,186.59 8,657.90 271.7%

17,539.00 17,794.00 -255.00 -1.4%
124,69 0.00 124.69 100.0%
279.99 0.00 279.99 100.0%
22,853.00 0.00 22,853.00 100.0%
7.983.61 31.38 7,962.23 25,373.6%

31,261.29 31.38 31,219.91 99,489.8%

222,196.62 111,824.19 110,372.43 98.7%

0.00 -26,324.00 26,324.00 100.0%
235,256.56 183,212.43 52,044.13 28.4%
344.86 881.86 -537.00 -80.9%
70,151.21 15,016.95 55,134.26 367.2%
14,749.73 16,811.93 -2,062.20 -12.3%

320,502.36 215,923.17 104,579.19 48.4%
17,240.52 11,562.863 5,677.89 49.1%
491247 -74.68 4,987.15 6,678.0%

22,152.99 11,487.95 10,665.04 92.8%

666,203.63 353,660.66 312,542.97 88.4%

-631,038.63 -85,992.26 -545,046.37 -633.8%




Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Budget Summary by Facility/Other
Two-Month Financial Trends for Period Ended August 31, 2009

Annual Year-To-Date
FY 2009 FY 2010 Percentage FY 2009 FY 2010 Percentage
Actual(1) Budget Change_ 7/1 - 8/31 7/1 - 8/31 ChanL
Van Andel Arena
Operating - Revenues $ 5,075,802 $5,004,712 (1.4) $ 559,940 $578,424 33
- Expenses - Facilities (3,560,475)  (3,683,368) 35 (567,265) (477,937) (15.7)
- Base Management Fees (158,672) (158,671) (26,445) (26,445)
- Incentive Fees (158,672) - - -
Net Operating Income 1,197,983 1,162,673 (2.9) (33,770) $74,042 219.3
Parking (net of allocated expenses) 140,681 134,751 4.2) 46,056 - (100.0)
Net Proceeds from VAA 1,338,664 1,297,424 3.1 12,286 74,042 502.7
DeVos Place Convention Center
Operating - Revenues 4,515,311 4,712,755 44 355,806 536,666 50.8
- Expenses - Facilities (4,877,874)  (5,393,674) 10.6 (706,400) (670,085) (CR)Y)
- Base Management Fees (158,672) (158,671) (26,445) (26,445)
- Incentive Fees (158,672) - - -
Net Operating Loss (679,907) (839,590) 235 (377,039) (159,864)
Parking (net of allocated expenses) 589,928 588,962 0.2) 35,669 17,626 (50.6)
Net Proceeds (Cost) of DVP (89,979) (250,628) 178.5 (341,370) (142,238) 58.3
Other
Revenues
Interest 560,860 675,000 68,229 -
Miscellaneous 112,293 - 99,920 -
673,153 675,000 0.3 168,149 - (100.0)
Expenses
Marketing Campaign - 100,000 - -
Pedestrian Safety 76,978 96,000 (3,187 5,471
Landscaping 20,000 100,000 - -
Administration 246,176 439,181 11,306 100,494
DeVos Parking Maintenance - 10,000 - -
343,154 745,181 117.2 8,119 105,965 1205.1
Net Other 329,999 (70,181) (121.3) 160,030 (105,965)
Total Operating $ 1,578,684 $976,615 (38.1) $  (169,054) $ (174,161) (3.0)
Capital Expenditures 456,093 1,945,200 (111,824) (222,197)
Results Net of Capital Expenditures $ 1,122,591 § (968,585) $  (280,878) $ (396,358)

M Year-end balances, subject to audit.




Item II1.B.iii.

Van Andel Arena®

DeVos Place®

Memorandum

To: CAA Board Members

From: Richard MacKeigan — SMG General Manager
Date: September 18, 2009

Re: Capital Budget FY 2010

Last month we discussed the potential of altering our capital budget for the
currently fiscal year to allow for a concourse expansion at VanAndel Arena and
still install a small LED Board under the center hung scoreboard. There has been
much discussion amongst committees, board members, City and County officials
as well as concerned public. The consensus appears to be to move forward with
this plan, but do so cautiously as the impact to the arena aesthetically is as
important as operationally.

Based on discussions at the committee levels, | am requesting the Finance
Committee approve, and recommend to the CAA Board of Directors, the
following action...
Capital Budget be amended to allow for
1. an expenditure of no greater than $200,000 for the installation of the
center hung LED Board
2. Concourse expansion to be added as a capital item with a not to exceed
amount of $1,000,000
3. SMG to work with Rosetti and Associates to coordinate a trip to The
Palace in Auburn Hills to view similar expansions



4. SMG to provide a recommendation on concourse expansion once
additional due diligence is complete (estimated January meeting).

This action would not alter the budget financially. The same request was made of
the Operations Committee at their meeting September 16/09 and was passed

unanomously.

As always, | am available should there be any questions, comments or concerns.



VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY

Item IV
DATE EVENT EC MOD ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Wed, Sep 16 | SMG MJD Huntington Club | 12P-1:30P Suite administrator’s luncheon
Star Crane RW Arena 8A-5P Overhead/Boom lift work
Thur, Sep 17 | Savor MJD Banquet B 8A-5P F & B training
Star Crane RW Arena 8A-5P Overhead/Boom lift work
Fri, Sep 18 Star Crane RW Arena 8A-5P Overhead/Boom lift work
Sat, Sep 19 Available
Sun, Sep 20 Available
Mon, Sep 21 | Ringling Bros. Circus GC Arena 8A-5P Show vehicles start arriving
Dumpster delivery
Gray water tanks dropped off
Animal compound set-up
Tue, Sep 22 Ringling Bros. Circus GC Arena TBD Power/water to horseshoe/Area 2
11:00 AM Pre-rig
Afternoon Train arrival
4:00 pm Animal walk
Wed, Sep 23 | Ringling Bros. Circus GC Arena 8:00 AM Load-in
TBD Health Dept. walk-thru
12:00 PM FCP walk-thru
3:00 PM FCP load-in
Thur, Sep 24 | Ringling Bros. Circus GC | EDDIE Arena 8:30 AM FCP load-in cont....
2:30 PM Practice
10:30 AM Pachyderm painting set-up
12:00 PM Pachyderm painting event
6:00 PM Doors
7P-8P Performance #1 first half
8P-8:15P Intermission
8:15P-9P Performance #1 second half
Fri, Sep 25 Ringling Bros. Circus GC |JIM Arena 6:00 PM Doors
7P-8P Performance #2 first half
8P-8:15P Intermission
8:15P-9P Performance #2 second half
Sat, Sep 26 Ringling Bros. Circus RS ROD Arena 10:00 AM Doors
11A-12P Performance #3 first half
12P-12:15P Intermission
12:15P-1P Performance #3 second half
1:05P-2P Quick clean
2:00 PM Doors
3P-4P Performance #4 first half
4P-4:15P Intermission
4:15P-5P Performance #4 second half
5:05P-6P Quick clean
6:00 PM Doors
7P-8P Performance #5 first half
8P-8:15P Intermission
8:15P-9P Performance #5 second half
Sun, Sep 27 Ringling Bros. Circus GC | TODD Arena 12:30 PM Doors
1:30P-2:30P | Performance #6 first half
2:30P-2:45P | Intermission
2:45P-3:30P | Performance #6 second half
Mon, Sep 28 | Ringling Bros. Circus GC Arena 8:00 AM Rentals off lot
Tue, Sep 29 Available
Wed, Sep 30 | Available
Thur, Oct 1 Staffing MID Banquet B 6:30 PM Orientation
Fri, Oct 2 Taylor Swift RS Arena 7:30 PM Performance
MJD Arbor Mort Club | 6P-10:30P Contest winner’s banquet




Sat, Oct 3 Available

Sun, Oct 4 Available

Mon, Oct 5 Available

Tue, Oct 6 Available

Wed, Oct 7 Available

Thur, Oct 8 Available

Fri, Oct 9 Prof Championship Bull Riders | RS Arena 7:30 PM Performance
Sat, Oct 10 Prof Championship Bull Riders | RS Arena 7:30 PM Performance
Sun, Oct 11 Available

Mon, Oct 12 | Available

Tue, Oct 13 Detroit Pistons vs GC Arena 6:00 PM Doors

Washington Wizards 7:00 PM Exhibition basketball game

Wed, Oct 14 Available

Thur, Oct 15 | Available

Fri, Oct 16 Dane Cook RS Arena 8:00 PM Performance
Sat, Oct 17 Available

Sun, Oct 18 Available




SW00Y SunedIAl 20O =d-V NOW

60/81/6
d-V YOO0HaAQ 19AT] = 4-V OY
@-v woored = d-V TIvd oIy A10][eD puelD = 0O
[TeH 9doueuLIo}dd SOASd = AQ H-V swooy SunssA JoouAO = H-V O
I O-V SIBH #qixd = O-V HA 4-V swooy Sunssjy AI9[[e pueld = -V O
JONVNINLIVIN AVA TIV | SWOOY ONILLIIN % HY FONVNILNIVIA TTVA NIV
ONIHSVM MOANIM AVATIV dAd FONVNILNIVIN
NOILLd3OTY LJ4dSS3d NV00:Z1-INd00:01 TIVH TVLIOTY
FONVINIO:1IAd Nd00:01-Nd00-8
N3dO ONILVES NdOE:L TIVH SOA3d
lvaddn NdOE-L-INd00:L TIVH TV.LIOTA
SMOHS T N3dO Ad4d01 NWdSH9 LHOIN ONINTdO NOSVIS HL08 ‘1 TVIISSVTIO
YJAO 0047 ‘FONVANILLY 1S3 NSJO SYOO0d FAISLNO AJOE:9 TIVH SOATd ANOHJAS SAIdVI ANVID 81 1d3S Tdd

JONVNALNIVIN AVA TIV | SWOOY ONILLITN ¥ HI FONVNILNIVIN TTV ATV
ONIHSVM MOANIM AVA 1TV dAd HONVNILNIVIA
JLHOIN DNINIJO NOSVAS HL08 -1 TVIISSVIO

TVSIVIHTI Nd00:01-INdOE-L TIVH SOA3d ANOHJWAS SAIdVY ANVIO L1 1d3S ‘SUNHL

TANLIVLIA INTITO Wd00:¢

NOILITINOD NIAT Wdog:T
SNOISSTS 1LNOAVIIL NdOET-INd0E T ao9oo
NAOQAVIIL A/V Wd00:T1 ao9oo
AvIId HONN'T WdOE:T1-Nd00:T1
WVID0OUd NIVIN Wd00:TI-NV00-6
FARRIY SYTINISTIAd WV0£:8-INV00-8
0L ‘GONVANTLLY "1S3 | 3w TVARRYY LNJITO WV00:8 a-vod JINVE ALID TYNOILLVN
JONVNALNIVIA AVA TIV | SWOOY ONLLITIN # HY JONVNILNIVIA TTVMYIIV
ONIHSV M MOQNIM AVATIV dAd HONVNILNIVIN
TVSIVAHTA Wd00:01-INd0¢-L LHOIN ODNINIJO NOSVIS HL08 1 TVIISSVIO

TVSYVIHTY Nd00:9-WNd0t-€ TTVH SOAZd ANOHJNAS SAIdVY ANVID 91 Ld3S ‘aIm

dNLIS AV

N dNIFS / TVARRY LNAI'TD Wd00:6-INdOE:9 a-voo ANVE ALID TYNOLLVN
LdVdIq INAITO Wdot:$
JLITdNOD LNIAET Wd00:$
ONILIIN Wd00:S-NV00:8
TVARIYV 1S3NO WV00:8
Z1 ‘HONVANALLY LS9 | 9N TVARRIY LNJITO WV00-8 WOOIaIvOod ONILITN AIVOd 3.LINIT NONAL
ONIHSVM MOGNIM AV TIV dAd FONVNILNIVIN
LOOHS OLOHd Wd00:01-NdOE:L
TVSIVIHTI Wd00:9-Nd0t:€ LHOIN ONINIdO NOSVIS HLO8 1 TVIISSVTIO

TTVH SOATd ANOHJAS SAIdVd ANVID

NI JAON Wd00:C1-NV00-8

600C — ATHIM
HOVTIESOAEA



Swooy Sunsa]y 20MUON =0-V NOW

60/81/6
d-V JOOHSAQ 19ATY] = 4-V O
g-v wooxeg = d-V 11Ivd vaIy AIs[[eD pueld = DO
[[BH 9oUBULIONSd SOAST = Ad H-V swooy Sunesjy YoolIoAQ =H-V O
4 O-V SI[eH ¥qYXd = O-V HA J-V swooy Sunssy A19[[en pueln = -V O
ONIHSVM MOANIM AVA TV dAd JONVNILNIVIN
Jovis
NO FONVNILNIVIN ONVId Wd00-S-INV00-8 HJAQ 1 SdOd OSUH
INFANINOLAv NdOE-€
d NOISS3S NdOE€-INd0ET | SIWOOY LNOoAvVIIL 1O
d NOISS3S WAST:T-IdSIT | SWOOY LNOAVIIL 10
JIAVILS /M HONN'T NAST-1-INd00-T1 a-o11vd
O NOISS3S WdO00:ZI-IWVO00:1T | SIWOOY LNOJIVIIL 10
g NOISS3S WVSPOI-INVEY:6 | SWOOY LNOAVIIL 10
V NOISS3S NVO0E:6-AV0E8 | SINOOY 1NOAVIIA 10
LSVAIVIII 2 LSO WVO0E 8-INVO0E-L a-o 1Ivd
00S ‘FONVANTLLY 1S3 TVARIIV INIITO NV0£-9 vv30 - NOILLvONAad 40 "14d3d "HOIN 1T 1d3S 'NOW
- 1 ]  >uval  0zid3sNas]
TINLIVLIA NdO0£-01
NVIDOUd NIVIN Wd0E-01-INd00:6
YINNIA Nd00:6-INd00-8
NOILVIOOANI WdSy-L
NAdO S900d WdSI-L
SOLOHd / NOLLdIO3d WNdST:L-WdST:9
NOILLVYLSIOTA dST1:L-INd00:9
dn 13s IN3ITO Nd00:9-INd0E v
0021 ‘FONVANFLLVY 1S9 | DD TVYAIREV LNAITD WJOE-¥ Vv 1Ivd 1ANONVE NOLLINDODTI AVMINY
LNO FJAON Wd00:3-d0t'v
SYIVHO FJAONTA Wd00-¥
MOHS NOIHSVd Wd00-T
MOHS NOIHSV4 Nd00-:TI
MOHS A0+ INV00:01
NI AIMOTTV SYOLIGIHXd WV00:6
000S -FONVANZLLY "1S3 g iy TVARIYV LNAITO NV0E8 VvV H3 NVOIHOIN 1SIM 40 MOHS TvAanRig
LNO FAON TVINININ d00:11-INd00:01
FONVINIOJIAd Wd00-:01-INd00-8
NAdO DNILVAS WdOg-L . TTVH SOATd
lvagadn dOE L-INd00:-L TIVH TV1IOTY
SMOHS T N340 A94d01 WdSy9 LHOIN ONINFdO NOSVAS HLO8 ‘1 TvDISSVIO
YIAO 00vT ‘FONVANALLYV 1S9 | MV NA40 SI00d IAISLNO NJOE9 TTIVH SOATd ANOHJAAS SAIdV ANVID 61 1d3S 'LVS
MOHS NOIHSV4d Nd00:L
MOHS Wd00-6-Wd00-S
NOILLOddSNI A1d WJ00:€
NI JAON d00-€-INV00-01
NI JAON WALl 3D¥V'1 WV00:8
TVAIIVY ONI'1T NWV0E'8
000§ -FJONVANILLYV "1S3 Ir TVARIV LNAITO V008 VvV H NVOIHDIN 1S3M 4O MOHS TvanRid
600 — ATJIdIM

HIOVIESOAEC



Swooy SursN 20MUO =0-V NOW

60/81/6
d-V 0O[19AQ J9ATY = 4-V O
d-v wooded = -V TIVd vaIy AI9|[en pueln = DO
[IeH 2oueULIOlIdd SOAST = AQ H-V swooy] Sunesj JooHAO = H-V O
¢ O-V SileH 1qyxd = O-V HI J-V swooy Suned A19[[eD pueln) = -V O

NI JAON

NOILd3OTY
dN ADvE NIV

Wd00: I-INV00:8

WNd6S: TT-WV00:8

TIVH TV.LIOTY

A9dOTHSTIM

ANOHJNAS SAIdVY ANVID

$C 1d3S ‘SINHL

N6S:11-INV00:8

a-v 1ivd

NOILLJFDE % NOLLVIOT NIVY ZRIdLIV

‘HONVANILLY "1S3

ONIHSYM MOQNIM AVA 1TV dAd HONVNILNIVIA
TVSIVIHTY Wd00:01-Nd00:L
NI JAON d00: 1-INV00:8 200 NOAT/HdAd 1 SdOd — 0S¥
NANOIAY SONILITN Wd00:§
Avaad WdogT
JANNSTI SONILIIN Wdo00:1 4-vOH
HONNT Wd00:Zl VOO
Avadd WV00-T1
SNIDAL SONILITN WV00:8 d-v 59

LSVANVIILG TVININILNOD

SNANOIQV DNILIIN

WV00-L

Wd00:§

JV OD

ANVINOD SOOTTIA

£C LdIS 'dIm

HOVIEFSOASA

Avaad NdOE:Z
STNNSTY ONLLIIN Nd00:] VOO
HONN'T NA00: 1-Nd00-TT ovoD
Avayd V00:01
SNIDJg ONLLIIN V008 ovVoo
.0S FONVANALLY ‘1S3 | Ir |  LISVINVINE TV.ININLINOD NV00:L >vDo ANVJNOD DOOTITN
SI¥Vdad LNAro Nd00¥
FLTTINOD INTAT Nd00:€
SNIOFE NOILINY Nd00:Z1
NOLLVYISIOTH VO00:11
007 ‘FONVANZLLY '1s3 | aw TYARRIV INTITD AV00:01 4-300 NOLLONV AL¥3d0¥d ALNNOD INTH
NIOM AVIHYIAO AVA TIV HdAQ FONVNILNIVIA
DNIHSVM MOANIM AVA 1TV dAd FONVNILNIVI
4131dNOD IN3AT NdOEY
WVYD0¥d NIVIN Nd00:#~NdOE:TT
(AVMIAY) MvI¥d HONN'T WAOE:ZI-NVOE T 1
WVIDO0Ud NIVIN WVOE: T 1-INV00:6
TVARRIV 1S3NO V00:6- V008
dn L3S INAITO V00:8-INVOE:L VIV ONNJ-d O LINWNS NVIO0¥d
‘JONVANALLY "LST TYARNY LNAITD NVOE:L >V 0¥ HOWVISTI OId3dOHLI0 TYNOLLYISNVYL
LNO avo1 NV00:ZI-INdOE'6
NOLLONYV FAIT NAOE:6-NOE 9
F01440 FONVNIA NAOE:6-Nd00:S
NOLLVILSIOTH WdO00'S
0S1 :IONVANILLY ‘153 | va NI AVOT NJOE: 1-Nd00: [ 4 TIve NOLLYV¥OJ¥OO NOLLISOdSIA 31V.LS3 Tva
YOM AVIHIIAO AVA TIV HdAQ FONVNILNIVIN
600C — ATJIdaM



60/31/6 swooy Sunos 0JUO =0-V NOW
-V J00[3AQ 1A = 4-V 0¥

@-v wooneg = @-V TIvd a1y Ala[[eD pueln = DO
[[BH 9oueULIOLIdd SOASA = AQ H-V swooy Sulss YOO[SAO = H-V O
L4 O-VSIlEH MqQWXd = D-V HA d-V swooy Sunssy A1s[ep pueld = -V O

FONVINIOIdad Wd00:01-Nd00:8
N3dO ONILVAS Wd0t:L
SMOHS ¢ N3dO Ad801 Wd00:L ATNIILS LON NIAVHS ‘ANOE STNVT 1 SdOd
YJAO 005y ‘FONVANALLY "LS3 | MV N340 $300d dISLNO Nd0¢:9 HdAd ANOHJWAS SAIdVI NVID
ONILIIN WOOI@MIVOs IVA — OIS
SAAVMY JFOIAYIS WdO00:T-INdST 1 a-o 1Ivd
WY JIDOUd WdST-T-WdSY-Cl a-o 11vd
HONNT WdOETI-NVSH: 11 a-0T11ve
NO AvOT YOANIA Wd00:£-Nd00-Z1 qa71Ive
SNOILLVLINISTdd JOANIA WVOETT-INV00:6 qgT1Ivd
Avaad NVSS8-INVSH'8 a-011vd
STIVLIA 2 INOCITIM WVSH:8-INV0E:8 a-o 1ivd
LSVIIvVIad WVSI8-INVOE:L a-o 11ve
dNLIS YJOANTA WV0E:L-INV00:9 q717Tvd
061 ‘HONVANTLLY "1S3 TVARIYY LNIITO WVSH:S Ad401 VIHOO3S STALLNIONI 2 SONLLIFN DLLOVIVD 97 1438 'LVS

FONVINIOLdAd Wd00:01-INd00:8
N3dO ONILVIS Wdog:L

N340 AddOT Wd00:L
SMOHS ¢ N3dO $300d 3aIS1NO Wdo£:9 ATYILLS LON NIIVHS ‘ANOE STNVT 1 SdOd
JIAO 00Sy "IONVANILLY LS9 | AV ONILLIIN Wd0t:S-Nd0t € HdAd ANOHJWAS SAIdVI ANVID
ONIHSVM MOANIM AVATIV dAd JONVNILNIVIA
ONLLIIN NOOI@IVOod IVA — OIS
SNAINOIAV DNILITAN Wd00:1
HONNT Wd00-Tl VOO
AvVIId WV00:01
NIDZd SONLLIIN WV00:8 avodb
0S 'FONVANTLLY 'Ls3 | I LSVIAVIIE TV.ININLLNOD NV00:L vVOD ANVJNOD DO0TTTA
dN.LIS YOLVIODIa Wd00:T
dNLIs LNAIO Wd00:5-Nd001

‘HONVANILLY LS dNLIS LIVIDLIY NV00-8 SHALLNADONI %2 SONILIFN JLLOVIVD $T 1498 ‘Tdd

SNANOIAV DNILIIN

HONN1 Wd00:Z1 Voo
Avaad WV00:01

NIOJd SONILLIIN WV00:8 4V OD
0§ “HONVANILLY 'Ls3 | Ir LSIAVIIE TV.ININIINOD WVY00:L VOO ANVJNOD DOOTTTH
ONIHSVM MOANIM AV 1TV dAad FONVNALNIVIN

NOILJEOTd ONINTVYM Nd00-01-Nd00-L -V NOW M TVMAIS
0001 ‘FONVANALLY 1S9 | vd dNnigs dvd A00:L-Nd00-9 ATVMAIS NOILLJIDTY LSLLYV JZRILLIV
TVSIVIHTA Wd00:01-Nd00:L HdAd ANALLS LON NIAVHS ‘ANOE STNV( ‘1 SdOd

6007 — ATIAM

HOVTESOAHEC



60/81/6

g-v woolfjeq = d-V 1TIvd
[TBH Q0UBULIOLISJ SOAST = AQ

SWO0Y SU1dA 20JUOIN =0~V NOW
J-V JOO[I9AQ IoATY = J-V OY

oIy AI9[[eD pueln = DD

H-V Swooy SunsA JOOHsAQ = H-V O

S O-V S[leH 1qIyxd = D-V HA J-V swooy Sunss| Am[[en puein = J-y O
dNnlas Nd6S-11-INV00:8 OV Hd
NOILdTOTAd Nd6S-TT-INV00:8 aod 11vd
dni3s NWd6S-11-INV00'8 H-V 0D

dN.L3s

WOOY LNoAvVIdd

Ad6S:11-NV00:8

dIN00-8-INV00:9

MOHS 004 19

AAVIVd NO LNITV.L

$ L0 ‘NOW

ONLLIIN Wd00:8-INV00:9 a-2 11vd
dN.L3s NJ6S: 1 1-NV00:8 OV HY MOHS 004 S49 ¥ 120 'NNS
LIgIHXd Wd6S T1-WV00:8 a-011vd
ONILITIN Wd6S:11-NV00:8 gV 11vd FONTITINOD TVNOIOTY STAVT LVIYD 600 €100 '1VS
HONN1 W65 T1-NV00:8 40%
ONLLIIN Wd6S:11-NV00:8 NOQAMIVOE ONILLITN AAVOd HLTVIH A LRIONRId
ONILIIN Wd6S:T1-INV00:8 g-v 1ivd

ONTIFANOD TYNOIOTY STAVT LVIID 600

LISTHXT AN6S: 1 1-INV00-8 ad-2 11vd C.100 Ty
dni3s

I Do

FONVINYIOIIId
NI JAON

ONLLFTN

Wd00:01 — INDOE:L

Wd00:01 —INdOE:L

dN00:$ —INV00:8

WV00:6

dn.ids Wd6S: 11-NV00:8 a-v 1ive FINTIFAINOD TYNOIOTY STAVT LVIID 6002
QNT LNJAF Wdog:s
NOISS3S Wd00-$-Ndot-€
NOISSIS WdO£:T-INd001
NOISS3S WV0E:01-INV00:6
SL ‘JONVANALLY 1S3 TVARIYV LNII'TD AV00:8 ONINIVIL LIOSOIIIN 1 120 'SYNHL

AVMAVOdd S-NVIARIIN
THH.LA -SINISTId SAIdVE ANVID AVMAVOUd

AVAMAVOId SNVINITIN
TIHLT :SINFSTAd SAIdVY ANVID AVMAVOIEd

ONILIFN J4VIS TTV

0¢ 1Ld3S 'aam

6¢C 1Ld3S 'SINL

dRILLS ISNOH

1NO JAON
FONVIARIOII3d

Ad00:1 —NV00:01

Wd00:8-Wd00:S A20d NOAT/HIAA

Wd00-$-Nd00:€

AVMAVOYd S.
TIHLT ‘SINISTAd SAIdVY ANVID AVvMAVvOodd

87 1d3S 'NOW

LT 1d3S 'NNS

N3dO ONILVES NdOE:Z
SMOHS € NH2dO AG€0T Nd00:C QIAYILS LON NTNVHS ‘ANOE STV ‘1 SdOd
¥AAO 00Sy ‘HONVANILLY "1ST N340 S¥00d 3dISLNO NdOE:1 HdAQ ANOHJWAS SAIdVd ANVID
600C — ATHIM

HOVTESOAECA



60/81/6 SWooy Funes| 20O =0-V NOW
d-V JOOLIBAQ 10AT] = J-V OY
valy A19j[eD pueln = DO

-V wooljed = 0-V TIvd
H-V SWooy Sunedy YOOHsAO = H-V O

[1eH adueuLIO)iod SOASJ = A(d

9 O-V Si[eH #qIUxd = D~V HA J-V swooy Sunsep A19[[en pueld = 4-¥ O
WOOY ONISYNN Wd6S-T11-INV00-8 JOVIOLS 4 HA
2440 DONILNNODDV Wd6S-TI-INV00:8 JOVIOLS O HA
W YTFHIVIDOLOHd Nd6S T1-INV00:8 JII440 MOHS O 3
NOOY dIA Wd6S-11-INV00:8 JOIdJO MOHS 93
01440 44VvI1S Nd6S TT-INV00-8 9401440 MOHSV 3
dNias Nd6S 11-INV00:8 OHE
N NOISSIS TVIINTD Nd6S-11-INV00'8 g-v H3 Zom.s_mm_u_mo ASRIIALNT INJ JIOVA
ONILITN WNV00:11-INV00:8 vV DD ONILLITN SYTOVNVIA ALID
WOOY LNoAvVIIg Nd6S-11-INV00-8 i-V DO
HONNT Wd6S-T11-INV00:8 q711vd
Ir NOISSIS TVIINID Nd6S 11-INV00:8 d-01Ivd JIHOVIL FHL NIVYIL — VHN
ONINIVIL
JN ONLLIFN Wd6S-11-INV00:L d-v NOW SSANISNE YNOA HONNVT S.NOILLYONAT avd HOII
NWOOY LNOAvVIIg Ad6S-T11-INV00:8 4-3 0¥

HONO'T
NOISSIS TVIINID

WOOY ONISUNN
30440 DNILLNNODOV

Wd6S:1T-WV00:8
W65 11-NV00:8

Wd6S:T1-Nd00-¥
Nd6S: 11-WNd00:¥

a-ooy
g-v O

FDVIOLS g HA
FDVIOLS D HA

‘dT1 ‘NVINAIFS 0dg

W YFHdIVIDOLOHd Wd6S-11-Nd00:¥ 401440 MOHS O 3
WOOY dIA Wd6S-T1-INd00 ¥ 401440 MOHS 4 9
401440 44VIS WNd6S:11-Wd00:¥ gO1440 MOHSV 3
N dN.L3s Wd6S:11-INd00: g-v Hd NOLLVIFITID ISIAYILNT ITIS YFOVA
WOOY LNOAVIRIE Wd6S:11-NV00:8 1V 55
HONNT Wd6S: T1-NV00:8 qg711vd
gl NOISSIS TVIINTO Wd6S:11-INV00:8 a-0 11ve YFHOVIL FHL NIVYIL - VHN
NMO@AVIL Wd6S:T1-WV00:8 OV HI MOHS dOO0d S49
WOOY LNOAVIId 6S T1-INV00:8 4-3 0%
HONNT Wd6S:11-NV00'8 a-o0y

NOISSIS TVIINIO

WOOY LNOXMvIId

Wd6S:11-NV00:8

Wd6S:T1-NV00:8

g-v Od

"d11 ‘NVINAIFS Odd

HONNT Nd6S:1T-INV00'8 a-oo0d
f1 NOISSTS TVYINID N6S: 1 1-INV00:8 g-v 04 'dT1 ‘NVINGIFS odd
LANONVE TVYNNNV
1 YANNIA Nd6S:11-INV00:8 a-v 11ve NVOIHOIN LSIM J0 TIONNOD SAIVIIV ATIOM
LI9IHXd Wd6S:TI-INV00:8 OVHA
WNOO0Y LNOMVIIg Nd6S:T1-NV00:8 H-V 0D

WOOY 1LOOAVIIL

WOOY 1LNoAvVIId
WOOY LNOAVIUL
LIGIHX3

W65 11-INV00:8

Wd6S-TT-INV00:8
Nd6S: 1T-INV00:8
Wd65:11-INV00:8

4V

600C — ATH9Mm
HIOVTESOAECT

MOHS JOOd S19

MOHS Q004 S19




60/81/6 SWooy SN 0O =0-V NOW
d-V J0OIRAQ oATY = 4-V OY

Q- wooryeq = -V TIve eIy AId[[eD pueld = DO
[IeH soueuLIolIdd SOASd = Ad H-V swooy SunsoA JOoo[IsAQ) =H-V O
L OV SIieH #qWxd = OV HA -V swooy Sunas A19J[eD pueID = J-V O
YINNIA Wd6S-11-NV00:8 4V OD
vd dnigs Nd6S-TI-INV00:8 8-V Hi MOHS 01. SFAVT LVIID JOATNNOD
If JIANNIA Nd6S11-INV00:8 a-v Tivd YINNIA FAI'T NO SND0d Z1.1L00 'NOW
ONINIVIL
N ONILLIIW INd6S-TT-INV00:L -V NOW SSANISNE ¥NOA HONNVT S.NOLLYONJd avd HOY
WOOY DNISYNN Nd6S-1T-NV00:8 FDOVHO0LS d HA
30440 DNILNNODOV Nd6S-TT-NV00:8 IOVIOLS O HA
WY 4dHdVIOO0L0Hd W65 TT-INV00:8 JO1dd0 MOHS O 9
WOOA dIA Wd6S-11-INV00-8 421440 MOHS 9 3
301440 4dVLS Nd6S- T1TI-INV00-8 d01440 MOHS V4
o2: | NOISSHS TVIINID Nd6S:11-INV00:8 -V Hi NOILVIEI 14O ISTHIUTLNT TS JIDVA 11 .LD0 'NNS

TN LIGIHXH Nd6S:T1-INV00:8 4-vDOD OdXd avid NVIDHIIN LSIM
AYVSYIAINNY
gl YINNIA Wd6S-11-INV00:8 v 11vd HLO0T HOYNHD LSILdVE JRIVd HLYON
ONINIVIL
TN ONILLIIN Wd6S:T1-INV00:L J-V NOW SSANISNE YNOA HONNVT S.NOLLVONAT avd HON
WOOY ONISANN Wd6S-11-NV00:8 gOVY0Ls 4 HT
42440 ONILNNODDV Wd6S-TT-NV00:8 FOVIOLS D HI
WY YFHIVIOOLOHd Wd6S: 11-WV00:8 JI1440 MOHS O 3
WOOY dIA Wd6S:T11-INV00:8 401440 MOHS 83
ER)EE(OELLAR Nd6S: TT-INV00'8 401440 MOHSV 3
dnidas Wd6S:11-INV00:8 OH3
o) NOISSIS TVIINIO Nd6S:T11-INV00:8 g-v H3 NOLLVIGITID SSRIFYILNT T YTIOVA 01 120 'LVS

600C — A TAHIM
HOVIESOAHCA




